
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

                NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

                                                                                                      ( MAY 9) (Week 19 of 2023) 

                                     
I                                        Live streaming at:                                                  Agenda and Minutes available at:                                                              

                https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa                     www.woodburycountyiowa.gov 

            
                                                                      
      
 Daniel A. Bittinger II          Mark Nelson             Keith W. Radig        Jeremy Taylor             Matthew A. Ung                                               
           389-4405                         540-1259                     560-6542                     259-7910                        490-7852                               
dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov        mnelson@woodburycountyiowa.gov          kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov       jtaylor@woodburycountyiowa.gov       matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov            

 
You are hereby notified a meeting of the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors will be held May 9, 2023, at 
4:30 p.m.  in the Basement of the Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux City, Iowa for the purpose of taking 
official action on the agenda items shown hereinafter and for such other business that may properly come before 
the Board.   
 
This is a formal meeting during which the Board may take official action on various items of business. Members 
of the public wishing to speak on an item must follow the participation rules adopted by the Board of Supervisors. 
 

1. Please silence cell phones and other devices while in the Boardroom. 
2. The Chair may recognize speakers on agenda items after initial discussion by the Board. 
3. Speakers will approach the microphone one at a time and give their name and address before their statement. 
4. Speakers will limit their remarks to three minutes on any one item and address their remarks to the Board. 
5. At the beginning of discussion on any item, the Chair may request statements in favor of an action be heard first 

followed by statements in opposition to the action.  The Chair may also request delegates provide statements on 
behalf of multiple speakers. 

6. Any concerns or questions which do not relate to a scheduled item on the agenda will be heard under the item 
“Citizen Concerns.” Please note the Board is legally prohibited from taking action on or engaging in deliberation on 
concerns not listed on the agenda, and in such cases the Chair will request further discussion take place after 
properly noticed. 

7. Public comment by electronic or telephonic means is prohibited except for a particular agenda item when approved 
by the Chair 24 hours before a meeting or by a majority of the board during a meeting for a subsequent meeting. 

 

AGENDA 
 
4:30 p.m.     Call Meeting to Order – Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag – Moment of Silence    
 
                     1.  Approval of the agenda                                                                                                Action 
 

Consent Agenda 

 

 

Items 2 through 7 constitute a Consent Agenda of routine action items to be considered by one     

         motion.  Items pass unanimously unless a separate vote is requested by a Board Member. 

 

                     2.  Approval of the minutes of the May 2, 2023, meeting 

 

                     3.  Approval of claims  

  

                     4.  County Auditor – Patrick Gill 

                          Approval of Liquor License Application for Oscar Carl Vineyard, Sioux City 

                     5.  Board Administration – Heather VanSickle 

                          Approval of Notice of Property Sale Resolution for Parcel #894728127010 (aka 613-15 13th   

                          Street) for Tuesday, May 23rd at 4:35 p.m. 

  

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=7QQ0sePQEtI
https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa
http://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/
mailto:dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov


                   

                    6.  Board Administration – Karen James 

                         Approval of resolution thanking and commending Michael Gray for his years of service with   

                         Woodbury County 

 

                    7.  Human Resources – Melissa Thomas 

              a.  Approval of Memorandum of Personnel Transactions 
              b.  Authorization to Initiate Hiring Process 
              c.  Approval of two retiree requests to remain on the county health insurance 

 

End Consent Agenda 

 

 

                   8.  Secondary Roads – Mark Nahra 

                        Approval of permit to work in the county right of way for Certified Testing                         Action 

                        Services 

 

4:45 p.m.    9.  Planning/Zoning – Daniel Priestley 

(Set time)         a.  Receive county staff report concerning proposed amendments to                               Action 

                             Ordinance #56 

                        b.  Public hearing for an ordinance to amend portions of Woodbury County                     Action 

                             Ordinance #56: Amendments to modify Section 6.1.A: Wind turbines set 

                             back requirements to increase certain setback requirements to the 

                             ordinance regulating Commercial Wind Energy Conversion Systems in 

                             unincorporated Woodbury County 

                        c.  Conduct and approve the first reading of the ordinance amendment                            Action   

              

                 10.  Reports on Committee Meetings                                                                                 Information 

   

                 11.  Citizen Concerns                                                                                                         Information 

  

                 12.  Board Concerns                                                                                                          Information      

 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Subject to Additions/Deletions 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CALENDAR OF EVENTS                                                 

 
 

WED., MAY 10       7:30 a.m.           SIMPCO Executive-Finance Committee - Hybrid 
  
                               8:05 a.m.           Woodbury County Information Communication Commission, First Floor Boardroom 
 
                             12:00 p.m.           District Board of Health Meeting, 1014 Nebraska St. 
 
                                6:30 p.m.          911 Service Board Meeting, Public Safety Center, Climbing Hill                            
 
THU., MAY 11      12:00 p.m.           SIMPCO Board of Directors, 1122 Pierce St. 
                              

                               4:00 p.m.           Conservation Board Meeting, Brown’s Lake/Bigelow Park   
  

WED., MAY 17     12:00 p.m.           Siouxland Economic Development Corporation Meeting, 617 Pierce St., Ste. 202 
 
THU., MAY 18        4:30 p.m.           Community Action Agency of Siouxland Board Meeting, 2700 Leech Avenue   
 
FRI., MAY 19       12:00 p.m.           Siouxland Human Investment Partnership Board Meeting, 2540 Glenn Ave.                 
 

MON., MAY 22      6:00 p.m.           Zoning Commission Meeting, First Floor Boardroom              
                                                             
WED., MAY 24      2:30 p.m.           Rolling Hills Community Services Region Governance Board Meeting 
 
THU, MAY 25      11:00 a.m.           Siouxland Regional Transit Systems (SRTS) Board Meeting, SIMPCO Office, 1122   
                                                         Pierce St. 
 
                            11:15 a.m.            Western Iowa Community Improvement Regional Housing Trust Fund - Hybrid   
 
MON., JUNE 5      6:00 p.m.           Board of Adjustment meeting, First Floor Boardroom 
 
WED., JUNE 7    10:00 a.m.           Loess Hills Alliance Stewardship Meeting, Pisgah, Iowa 
 
                            11:00 a.m.           Loess Hills Alliance Executive Meeting 
 
                              1:00 p.m.           Loess Hills Alliance Full Board Meeting   
 
                              4:45 p.m.           Veteran Affairs Meeting, Veteran Affairs Office, 1211 Tri-View Ave.                           
                                        
                            12:00 p.m.           District Board of Health Meeting, 1014 Nebraska St.                              
 
THU., JUNE 8     12:00 p.m.          SIMPCO Board of Directors, 1122 Pierce St. 
                              

                              4:00 p.m.          Conservation Board Meeting, Dorothy Pecaut Nature Center, Stone Park 
 

WED., JUNE14    7:30 a.m.            SIMPCO Executive-Finance Committee - Hybrid  
 
                             8:05 a.m.           Woodbury County Information Communication Commission, First Floor Boardroom 
 
                            10:00 a.m.          Western Iowa Tourism Region Annual Meeting, Audubon County 
     
THU., JUNE 15     5:00 p.m.          SIMPCO Annual Board of Directors Meeting & Award Ceremony, Mapleton, IA 
 

 

 

 

                         
Woodbury County is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the County will consider reasonable accommodations 
for qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages prospective employees and incumbents to discuss potential accommodations with the Employer. 
 
Federal and state laws prohibit employment and/or public accommodation discrimination on the basis of age, color, creed, disability, gender identity, national origin, 
pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation or veteran’s status. If you believe you have been discriminated against, please contact the Iowa Civil Rights 
Commission at 800-457-4416 or Iowa Department of Transportation’s civil rights coordinator. If you need accommodations because of a disability to access the Iowa 
Department of Transportation’s services, contact the agency’s affirmative action officer at 800-262-0003.     



MAY 2, 2023, EIGHTEENTH MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  
 
The Board of Supervisors met on Tuesday, May 2, 2023, at 4:00 p.m.  Board members present were Bittinger II, Nelson, 
Taylor, Radig, and Ung.  Staff members present were Karen James, Board Administrative Assistant, Dennis Butler, Budget 
and Finance Director, Joshua Widman, Assistant County Attorney, and Michelle Skaff, Deputy Auditor/Clerk to the Board. 
 
Motion by Ung second by Taylor to go into closed session per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c).  Carried 5-0 on roll-call vote. 
 
Motion by Ung second by Taylor to go out of closed session per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c).  Carried 5-0 on roll-call vote. 
 
The regular meeting was called to order with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and a Moment of Silence. 
  
1. Motion by Ung second by Radig to approve the agenda for May 2, 2023.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
   
 Motion by Radig second by Ung to approve the following items by consent: 
 
2. To approve minutes of the April 25, 2023 meeting.  Copy filed. 
  
3. To approve the claims totaling $291,791.93.  Copy filed. 
 
4. To approve a 28E Agreement between Woodbury County, Iowa and the Woodbury Soil and Water Conservation 

District for funding and management of a Watershed Inspection and Maintenance Program in Woodbury County, 
Iowa.  Copy filed. 

 
5. To set the public hearing for the FY23 Budget Amendment #1 for May 30, 2023 at 4:45 p.m. 
 
6a. To approve the separation of Alma Reyes Ramirez, Asst. County Attorney, County Attorney Dept., effective 05-05-

23. Resignation.; the separation of Zachary Johnson, Sheriff Deputy, County Sheriff Dept., effective 05-14-23. 
Resignation.; and the reclassification of Katie Nelson, Custodian, County Sheriff Dept., effective 05-15-23, 
$18.05/hour, 5%=$.87/hour. Per AFSCME Courthouse Contract agreement, from Grade 1/Step 2 to Grade 1/Step 3.  
Copy filed. 

 
6b.  To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign the Authorization to initiate the hiring process for Deputy 

Sheriff, County Sheriff Dept.  CWA:  $26.55/hour.; and (2) P/T Operations Officers-Paramedics, Emergency Services 
Dept.  Wage Plan:  $25.00/hour.  Copy filed. 

 
7. To approve the underground utility permit for North West REC.  Copy filed. 
 
8. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution proclamation May is National Mental Health 

Month.   
 

WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS PROCLAMATION 
RESOLUTION #13,587 

PROCLAMATION 
MAY IS NATIONAL MENTAL HEALTH MONTH 

 
WHEREAS, mental health is essential to everyone’s overall physical health and emotional  
well-being and 
 
WHEREAS, surroundings can impact if, how, and when a person’s needs are met, which in turn affects mental 
health; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is a need to recognize that mental illness affects the lives of many of our citizens and residents of 
all ages and sectors; and 
 
WHEREAS, mental illness will strike one of four adults; and about two in ten children live with a serious mental or 
emotional disorder regardless of race, ethnicity, religion or economic status; and 



May 2, 2023 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                                      Page 2 
 

 

 

 
WHEREAS, people who have mental illnesses can recover and lead full productive lives and with the help of 
Siouxland Mental Health Center, designated as the community mental health center in Woodbury County; and 
 
WHEREAS, an estimated two-thirds of adults and one half of children with diagnosable mental health disorders are 
not receiving the help they need; and 
 
WHEREAS, stigma continues to be the single most significant barrier to people getting the help they need; and 
 
WHEREAS, mental health awareness helps individuals avoid the significant consequences of untreated anxiety, 
depression and stress; and 
 
WHEREAS, the cost of untreated and mistreated mental illnesses and addictive disorders to American businesses, 
governments and families continues to grow; and 
 
WHEREAS, disparities in mental health can be reduced by improving community outreach and engagement which 
ensure competent care for diverse communities; and 
 
WHEREAS, positive mental health fosters self-esteem, and promotes personal happiness and effectiveness; and 
 
WHEREAS, good mental health helps prevent community violence, abuse and family instability; and; 
 
WHEREAS, the Woodbury County Supervisors observes Mental Health month every May to raise awareness and 
understanding of mental health and illness. 
 
THEREFORE, I Matthew Ung, do hereby proclaim May 2023 as Mental Health Month in Woodbury County, Iowa. As 
Chairman, I also call upon the citizens, government agencies, public and private institutions, businesses, and 
schools of Woodbury County, Iowa to recommit our community to increasing awareness and understanding of 
mental health, the steps our citizens can take to protect their mental health, and the need for appropriate and 
accessible services for all people with mental health conditions. 

                

DATED: this 2nd day of May 2023. 

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Copy filed. 

 
Carried 5-0. 
 
9. Motion by Taylor second by Nelson to approve the purchase of 3CX phone system for the County.  Carried 5-0.  

Copy filed. 
 
10a. Motion by Radig second by Taylor to approve the permit to work in the right of way for Brenton Feuchtenberger.  

Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
10b. Motion by Radig second by Bittinger to award the bid for one motor grader to Murphy Tractor for $381,044.00 and 

rebuild the second motor grader for $213,450.00.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
10c. Motion by Radig second by Ung to award the bid for 2 single axle dump trucks to Boyer Truck for $192,540 and 

Istate for $190,805.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
10d. Motion by Radig second by Bittinger to approve the detour agreement with Iowa DOT for use of county roads 

during the Salix Interchange Project.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
11a. Motion by Radig second by Taylor to receive the final staff report and the Zoning Commission’s recommendation 

from their 4/24/23 meeting to approve the final plat of Niemeyer Addition, a minor subdivision to Woodbury 
County, Iowa.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 



May 2, 2023 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                                      Page 3 
 

 

 

 
11b. Motion by Radig second by Taylor to approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution accepting and 

approving the final plat of Niemeyer Addition, a Minor Subdivision to Woodbury County.  Carried 5-0. 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
RESOLUTION #13,588 

ACCEPTING AND APPROVING NIEMEYER ADDITION 
A MINOR SUBDIVISION 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
 

WHEREAS, THE OWNER AND PROPRIETOR DID ON 

THE 24TH DAY OF APRIL 2023, FILE WITH THE WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING COMMISSION A CERTAIN 
PLAT DESIGNATED AS NIEMEYER ADDITION, A MINOR SUBDIVISION TO WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA; 
AND 

WHEREAS, IT APPEARS THAT SAID PLAT CONFORMS WITH ALL OF THE PROVISIONS OF THE CODE 
OF THE STATE OF IOWA AND ORDINANCES OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA, WI TH REFERENCE TO 
THE FILING OF SAME; AND 

WHEREAS, THE ZONING COMMISSION OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA HAS RECOMMENDED THE 
ACCEPTANCE AND APPROVAL OF SAID PLAT; AND 

WHEREAS, THE COUNTY ENGINEER OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA HAS RECOMMENDED THE 
ACCEPTANCE AND APPROVAL OF SAID PLAT. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS, WOODBURY COUNTY, STATE OF IOWA, THAT NIEMEYER ADDITION, A MINOR 
SUBDIVISION TO WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA BE, AND THE SAME IS HEREBY ACCEPTED AND 
APPROVED, AND THE CHAIRPERSON AND SECRETARY OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS, WOODBURY COUNTY, STATE OF IOWA, ARE HEREBY DIRECTED TO FURNISH TO THE 
OWNER AND PROPRIETOR A CERTIFIED COPY OF THIS RESOLUTION AS REQUIRED BY LAW.  

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 2ND DAY OF MAY, 2 0 23. 
 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
12. Reports on committee meetings were heard. 
 
13. There were no citizen concerns 
 
14.  Board concerns were heard. 
 
The Board adjourned the regular meeting until May 9, 2023. 
 
Meeting sign in sheet.  Copy filed. 

















 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

 

RESOLUTION NO.______ 

 

A RESOLUTION THANKING AND COMMENDING 

 

Michael Gray 
 

FOR hIS sErVICE TO WOODBURY COUNTY 

 
WHEREAS, Michael Gray has capably served Woodbury County as an employee 

of the Woodbury County Secondary Roads for 28 years from October 23, 1995 to 
June 30, 2023 
 

WHEREAS, the service given by Michael Gray as a Woodbury County employee, 

has been characterized by his dedication to the best interests of the citizens of 
Woodbury County; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA that the 

undersigned members of this Board thanks and commends Michael Gray for his 
years of service to Woodbury County; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that it is the wish of all those signing below 

that the future hold only the best for this very deserving person, Michael Gray. 
 

BE IT SO RESOLVED this 9th day of May 2023. 

 
 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 
_________________________________ ______________________________ 
Matthew A. Ung, Chairman               Jeremy J. Taylor, Member 
 
 
 
_________________________________ ______________________________ 
 Daniel A. Bittinger II, Member    Keith W. Radig, Member 
 
 
 
                                          ________________________ 
                                               Mark E. Nelson, Member 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Patrick F. Gill, Woodbury County Auditor 
 
 





























WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

5/3/23 5/9/22 4:45

Daniel Priestley

✔ ✔

✔ ✔

A) Receive staff report concerning proposed amendments to Ordinance #56. B) Public Hearing for an ordinance to amend portions of
Woodbury County Ordinance #56: Amendments to modify Section 6.1.A: Wind Turbines Set Back Requirements to increase certain
setback requirements to the Ordinance regulating Commercial Wind Energy Conversion Systems in Unincorporated Woodbury County.
C) Approve the 1st Reading of the Ordinance Amendment

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED REVISIONS TO WOODBURY COUNTY ORDINANCE #56: AMENDMENTS TO MODIFY
SECTION 6.1.A: WIND TURBINES SET BACK REQUIREMENTS TO INCREASE CERTAIN SETBACK REQUIREMENTS TO
THE ORDINANCE REGULATING COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS IN UNINCORPORATED
WOODBURY COUNTY.

The Board will hold a public hearing and the first reading of the proposed ordinance to amend portions of Woodbury County
Ordinance #56: Amendments to modify Section 6.1.A: Wind Turbines Set Back Requirements to increase certain setback
requirements to the Ordinance regulating Commercial Wind Energy Conversion Systems in Unincorporated Woodbury County.
Amendment #1: On page 10, Section 6.1.A, to repeal and replace the Wind Turbine Set Back Requirement for the City Limits
Protected Area from 600 feet to 2 miles. Amendment #2: On page 10, Section 6.1.A, to repeal and replace the Wind Turbine Set
Back Requirement for the Public Conservation Protected Area from 600 feet or 110% of total height (whichever is greater) to 2,640
feet or 4.5x tower height (whichever is greater).

0

Receive the county staff report.

Open and close the public hearing. (Set Time: 4:45 PM)

Conduct and approve the first reading of the ordinance.

The 2nd and 3rd public hearings and readings of the ordinance have been scheduled for Tuesday, May 16 at 4:45 PM and Tuesday, May 23 at 4:45 PM.

A) Motion to receive county staff report concerning proposed amendments to Ordinance #56.

B) Open and close the Public Hearing (Set Time: 4:45 PM) for an ordinance to amend portions of Woodbury County Ordinance #56:
Amendments to modify Section 6.1.A: Wind Turbines Set Back Requirements to increase certain setback requirements to the
Ordinance regulating Commercial Wind Energy Conversion Systems in Unincorporated Woodbury County.

C) Motion to conduct and approve the 1st Reading of the Ordinance Amendment



 

 

 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ___ 
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PORTIONS OF WOODBURY COUNTY ORDINANCE #56: AN 
AMENDMENT TO MODIFY SECTION 6.1.A: WIND TURBINES SET BACK REQUIREMENTS 
TO INCREASE CERTAIN SETBACK REQUIREMENTS IN THE ORDINANCE REGULATING 
COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS IN UNINCORPORATED 
WOODBURY COUNTY. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF WOODBURY 
COUNTY, IOWA THAT THE BELOW AMENDMENTS BE MADE: 
 
AMENDMENT #1: 
 
On page 10, Section 6.1.A, to repeal and replace the Wind Turbine Set Back Requirement for 
the City Limits Protected Area from 600 feet to 2 miles. 
 
AMENDMENT #2: 
 
On page 10, Section 6.1.A, to repeal and replace the Wind Turbine Set Back Requirement for 
the Public Conservation Protected Area from 600 feet or 110% of total height (whichever is 
greater) to 2,640 feet or 4.5x tower height (whichever is greater). 
 
Adopted this ____ day of ______, 2023 
 
THE WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 

______________________________ 
Matthew Ung, Chairman 

______________________________ 
Jeremy Taylor, Vice Chairman 

______________________________ 
Daniel Bittinger II 

______________________________ 
Mark Nelson 

______________________________ 
Keith Radig 

Adoption Timeline 
___________________: Public Hearing and 1st Reading 
___________________: Public Hearing and 2nd Reading 
___________________: Public Hearing and 3rd Reading 
___________________: Adopted 
___________________: Published/Effective Date 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Patrick Gill, Woodbury County Auditor 
 


	Insert from: "5-9-23_1st_Public_Hearing_Reading_Amendment_Ordinance_56_61A.pdf"
	amending portions of Woodbury County Ordinance #56: An amendment to modify Section 6.1.A: Wind Turbines Set Back Requirements in the ordinance regulating Commercial Wind Energy Conversion Systems in unincorporated Woodbury County.


